BYLAWS OF THE FAIRFAX-FALLS CHURCH COMMUNITY POLICY AND MANAGEMENT TEAM

ARTICLE I: PURPOSE

It is the purpose of the Fairfax-Falls Church Community Policy and Management Team (CPMT) to implement the Children's Services Act pursuant to Va. Code Ann. § 2.2-5200, et seq.

ARTICLE II: MISSION

The Fairfax-Falls Church CPMT is committed to providing all children, youth, and their families with equitable and easy access to a continuum of quality, integrated and/or coordinated services, supports, and opportunities that further their social, emotional, mental, and behavioral health and that promote resiliency.

ARTICLE III: PARTICIPATING JURISDICTIONS AND NAME

The governing bodies of Fairfax County and the cities of Fairfax and Falls Church have agreed to work jointly on implementing the Children's Services Act. Therefore, this body shall be known as the "Fairfax-Falls Church Community Policy and Management Team."

ARTICLE IV: RESPONSIBILITIES

As set forth in the *Code of Virginia*, the CPMT's authority and duties include, but are not limited to, the following:

- 1. Develop interagency policies and procedures to govern the provision of services to children and families;
- 2. Develop interagency fiscal policies governing access to the State pool of funds by the eligible populations including immediate access to funds for emergency services and sheltered care;
- 3. Establish policies to assess the ability of parents or legal guardians to contribute financially to the cost of services to be provided and, when not specifically prohibited by federal or state law, provide for appropriate parental or legal guardian financial contribution, utilizing a standard sliding fee scale based upon ability to pay;
- 4. Coordinate long range, community-wide planning which ensures the development of resources and services needed by children and families;
- 5. Establish policies governing referrals and reviews of children and families to the Family Assessment and Planning Teams and a process to review the teams' recommendations and requests for funding;
- 6. Establish Family Assessment and Planning Teams (FAPT) and/or collaborative, multidisciplinary teams (MDT) as needed;
- 7. Establish quality assurance and accountability procedures for program utilization and funds management;

- 8. Establish procedures for obtaining bids on the development of new services and enter into contracts for the provision or operation of services in accordance with the Fairfax County Purchasing Resolution;
- 9. Manage funds in the interagency budget allocated to the community from the state pools of funds, the trust fund, and any other source;
- 10. Authorize and monitor the expenditure of funds by each Family Assessment and Planning Team;
- 11. Submit grant proposals that benefit this community to the state trust fund and enter into contracts for the provision or operation of services upon approval of the participating governing bodies;
- 12. Serve as the community's liaison to the Office for Children's Services, reporting on its programmatic and fiscal operations and on its recommendations for improving the service system, including consideration of realignment of geographical boundaries for providing human services;
- 13. Collect and provide uniform data to the State Executive Council as requested by the Office for Children's Services in accordance with subdivision D 16 of §2.2-2648;
- 14. Review and analyze data in management reports provided by the Office of Children's Services in accordance with subdivision D 18 of § 2.2-2648 to help evaluate child and family outcomes and public and private provider performance in the provision of services to children and families through the Children's Services Act program, review local and statewide data provided in the management reports on the number of children served, children placed out of state, demographics, types of services provided, duration of services, service expenditures, child and family outcomes, and performance measures, and track the utilization and performance of residential placements using data and management reports to develop and implement strategies for returning children placed outside of the Commonwealth, preventing placements, and reducing lengths of stay in residential programs for children who can appropriately and effectively be served in their home, relative's homes, family-like setting, or their community;
- 15. Administer funds pursuant to § 16.1-309.3;
- 16. Have authority upon approval of the participating governing bodies, to enter into a contract with another community policy and management team to purchase coordination services, provided that funds described as the state pool of funds under § 2.2-5211 are not used;
- 17. Submit to the Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services information on children under the age of 14 and adolescents ages 14 through 17 for whom an admission to an acute care psychiatric or residential treatment facility licensed pursuant to § 37.2-403 et seq., exclusive of group homes, was sought but was unable to be obtained by the reporting entities. Such information shall be gathered from the family assessment and planning teams or participating community agencies authorized in § 2.2-5207;

- 18. Establish policies for providing intensive care coordination services for children who are at risk of entering, or are placed in, residential care through the Children's Services Act program, consistent with guidelines developed pursuant to subdivision D 22 of § 2.2-2648; and
- 19. Establish policies and procedures for appeals by youth and their families of decisions made by local family assessment and planning teams regarding services to be provided to the youth and family pursuant to an individual family services plan developed by the local family assessment and planning team. Such policies and procedures shall not apply to appeals made pursuant to § 63.2-915 or in accordance with the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act or federal or state laws or regulations governing the provision of medical assistance pursuant to Title XIX of the Social Security Act.

ARTICLE V: MEMBERSHIP, APPOINTMENTS, AND TERM OF OFFICE

Section 1. Memberships.

The CPMT shall have no more than twenty-one (21) members. Eleven (11) members have legally mandated status under the Code of Virginia. Four (4) members are locally mandated by the Fairfax County Board of Supervisors. Six (6) additional members may be appointed by the Fairfax County Board of Supervisors. Of the twenty-one CPMT members, eight (8) members shall serve on a limited term basis.

Section 2. Legally Mandated Members.

The following representatives are mandated under *Virginia Code* to serve as members of the CPMT:

- Deputy County Executive, Health and Human Services
- Director of Court Services for the Fairfax County Juvenile and Domestic Relations Court
- Director of the Department of Family Services
- Executive Director of the Fairfax-Falls Church Community Services Board
- Director of the Department of Health
- Assistant Superintendent, Department of Special Services, Fairfax County Public Schools
- One (1) representative of the Falls Church City Public Schools
- One (1) human services representative appointed by the Fairfax City Council
- One (1) human services representative appointed by the Falls Church City Council
- One (1) representative of private service providers (Limited Term Member)
- One (1) parent representative who is not an employee of any public or private provider of services to youth (Limited Term Member)

Section 3. Locally Mandated Members.

The following representatives are designated by the Fairfax County Board of Supervisors to serve as members of the CPMT:

- Director of the Office of Strategy Management
- Director of the Department of Neighborhood and Community Services
- Director of Special Education Procedural Support, Fairfax County Public Schools
- Director of Intervention and Prevention Services, Fairfax County Public Schools

Section 4. Optional Members.

The Fairfax County Board of Supervisors may appoint the following limited term members to the CPMT after all participating jurisdictions have had the opportunity to submit nomination recommendations:

- One (1) representative of private service providers
- Up to four (4) parent representatives who are not employees of any public or private provider of services to youth
- One (1) community representative

Section 5. Appointments and Terms for Limited Term Members

<u>Term of Appointment</u>: The private service provider and parent representative legally mandated to serve on the CPMT and any appointed optional members (up to six members) shall serve two (2) year limited term appointments.

<u>Appointment</u>: Fairfax County, the City of Fairfax, and the City of Falls Church shall be afforded the opportunity to nominate persons for limited term appointments. The Chair of the CPMT shall appoint a Nominating Committee of at least three (3) members who, after consideration of all nominations, shall make recommendations to the CPMT. If the CPMT approves the Nominating Committee's recommended candidate(s) for limited term membership, it shall forward the recommended candidate(s) to the Fairfax County Board of Supervisors for approval. The Chair shall appoint at least one parent representative to the Nominating Committee when the appointment of a parent representative is being considered.

<u>Re-Appointment</u>: Re-appointments may be made for additional consecutive terms by currently serving, limited term members upon approval by the Fairfax County Board of Supervisors after CPMT consideration of recommendations from all participating jurisdictions. The terms of private service provider representatives shall expire in alternating years.

ARTICLE VI: OFFICERS AND THEIR DUTIES

Section 1. Officers.

The officers of the CPMT shall consist of a Chair and Vice Chair. The Chair shall be the Fairfax County Deputy County Executive for Health and Human Services.

Section 2. Duties of the Chair.

The duties of the Chair shall be:

- a. To set the agenda for and preside at all meetings of the CPMT.
- b. To appoint committees as needed to support the work of the CPMT.
- c. To keep the State Management Team, the Fairfax County Board of Supervisors, and the Councils of the participating cities informed of the activities of the CPMT.
- d. To perform other duties as determined by the CPMT.

Section 3. Duties of the Vice Chair.

The Vice Chair shall, in the absence of the Chair, perform the duties of the Chair and other duties determined by the CPMT.

ARTICLE VII: ELECTION OF CERTAIN OFFICERS AND TERM OF OFFICE

Section 1. Elections.

Election of officers other than the Chair shall be conducted by the CPMT acting as a Nominating Committee of the Whole. The election shall be held at the last meeting of the County fiscal year or as needed, and in accordance with the voting provisions of Article X of these bylaws.

Section 2. Term of Office.

The term of officers other than the Chair shall be for the County fiscal year. There is no term limit on the number of terms which a person may serve.

Section 3. Replacement of Officers.

If an office other than the Chair becomes vacant for any reason, it shall be filled by an election at the next regular meeting having a majority of members present. The newly elected officer shall complete the unexpired term of the officer succeeded. Prior to the election of any replacement officer, all members shall be provided with notice of the proposed election before the meeting at which the replacement is elected.

ARTICLE VIII: MEETINGS

Section 1. Meetings.

The CPMT shall hold a sufficient number of meetings to properly conduct its business.

Section 2. Absences.

Absences shall be managed in accordance with Fairfax County Procedural Memorandum 01-02, which states that upon notification by staff, the Clerk will communicate with the Board of Supervisors regarding members who are absent from three or more consecutive meetings.

Any Limited Term member who misses three consecutive meetings or more than half of the scheduled meetings within a 12-month period, or who fails to participate in the work of the CPMT without good cause acceptable to a majority of the other CPMT members may be subject to removal from the CPMT in accordance with Article XIII of these bylaws.

Upon notification by staff, the Clerks of the Cities will inform their respective City Council about members representing the Cities who are absent from three (3) of more consecutive meetings.

Section 3. VFOIA.

All meetings shall be open to the public except as provided under the Virginia Freedom of Information Act, Virginia Code § 2.2-3700 *et seq.*, as it may be amended from time to time ("VFOIA"). Pursuant to Virginia Code § 2.2-3701, "meeting" or "meetings" means the meetings including work sessions, when sitting physically, or through electronic communication means pursuant to § 2.2-3708.2, as a body or entity, or as an informal assemblage of (i) as many as three members or (ii) a quorum, if less than three, of the constituent membership, wherever held, with or without minutes being taken, whether or not votes are cast, of any public body.

Section 4. Notice and Agenda.

Notice and the agenda of all meetings shall be provided as required under the VFOIA. All meetings shall be preceded by properly posted notice stating the date, time, and location of each meeting. Notice of a meeting shall be given at least three working days prior to the meeting. Notice of emergency meetings, reasonable under the circumstances, shall be given contemporaneously with the notice provided to CPMT members. Notices of all meetings shall be provided to the Office of Public Affairs for posting at the Government Center and on the County Web site as well as to the Office of Communications at the City of Falls Church and the City of Fairfax for posting at their respective City Hall and their City website. All meetings shall be conducted in public places that are accessible to persons with disabilities.

Section 5. Public Access.

For any meeting, at least one copy of the agenda, all agenda packets, and, unless exempt under the VFOIA, all materials furnished to members shall be made available for public inspection at the same time such documents are furnished to the members. Pursuant to the VFOIA, any person may photograph, film, record, or otherwise reproduce any portion of a meeting required to be open, but such actions may not interfere with any CPMT proceedings.

Section 6. Records.

County staff shall ensure that minutes of meetings are recorded as required under the VFOIA. Minutes shall include: (1) the date, time, and location of each meeting; (2) the members present and absent; (3) a summary of the discussion on matters proposed, deliberated, or decided; and (4) a record of any votes taken. Such minutes are public records and subject to inspection and copying by citizens of the Commonwealth or by members of the news media. The supporting County department shall provide staff support to review records and minutes of the meeting.

Section 7. Staff Support.

The Fairfax County Deputy Executive for Health and Human Services shall designate staff to provide administrative support including preparation and distribution of agendas and meeting minutes.

ARTICLE IX: QUORUM

A majority of the members of the CPMT including the Chair or Vice-Chair, present in person, constitutes a quorum at all meetings of the CPMT for the transaction of business.

ARTICLE X: RULES OF ORDER

Section 1. Voting.

Both officially appointed members and their designees may participate in discussions. However, only the officially appointed members may vote.

A quorum is necessary for a vote. In making any recommendations, adopting any plan, or approving any proposal, action shall be taken by a majority vote of the CPMT members present and voting. Upon the request of any member, the vote of each member on any issue shall be recorded in the minutes. All votes of CPMT members shall be taken during a public meeting, and no vote shall be taken by secret or written ballot or by proxy.

Section 2. Conduct and Procedure.

The CPMT shall generally work by consensus. Except as otherwise provided by Virginia law or these bylaws, all meetings shall be conducted in accordance with *Robert's Rules of Order*, *Newly Revised*, and except as specifically authorized by the VFOIA, no meeting shall be conducted through telephonic, video, electronic, or other communication means where the members are not all physically assembled to discuss or transact public business. All issues of parliamentary procedure shall be referred to the Chair or presiding officer, whose decisions shall be final.

ARTICLE XI: COMMITTEES

Committees may be established as needed. Committee membership is not limited to members of the CPMT.

All meetings of any such committees shall comply with the notice and other requirements of the VFOIA. To the extent practicable, any such committees shall be composed of at least four members. Committee meetings may be held at the call of the Chairperson or at the request of two members, with notice to all members.

ARTICLE XII: CONFIDENTIALITY

All information about specific youth and families obtained by CPMT members in discharge of their responsibilities shall be confidential under all applicable laws, mandates, and licensing requirements.

ARTICLE XIII: REMOVAL OF MEMBERS

The CPMT may recommend to the Fairfax County Board of Supervisors removal of any Limited Term member(s) from the CPMT for cause, including but not limited to cause as set forth in Article VIII, Section 2, by a two-thirds majority vote of all the CPMT members. Prior to the CPMT vote to recommend removal of a Limited Term member, the CPMT shall inform the representatives of the Falls Church City Council and the Fairfax City Council of its intention to recommend removal of a Limited Term member. The members' authority to recommend removal under these bylaws neither limits nor waives the Board of Supervisors' authority to remove members from the CPMT as provided by law.

ARTICLE XIV: COMPLIANCE WITH LAW AND POLICY

The CPMT shall comply with all Virginia laws, including, but not limited to, the VFOIA, and the Virginia State and Local Government Conflict of Interests Act, Virginia Code § 2.2-3100, *et seq.*, as amended, with all County and City ordinances, and with all County and City policies concerning the activities of their boards, authorities, and commissions. In case of a conflict between a provision of these bylaws and any applicable ordinance or law, the provisions of the applicable ordinance or law, as the case may be, shall control.

ARTICLE XV: AMENDMENTS

These bylaws may be amended by adopting the proposed amendment or amendments at any regular meeting of the CPMT by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of those present and voting; provided, however, that notice of the proposed changes have been submitted to the members of the CPMT thirty (30) days prior to the meeting. Proposed amendments to these bylaws may also be adopted at any time without advance notice by unanimous vote of all members of the CPMT. Any proposed amendments are subject to, and shall not become effective until, approval by the Fairfax County Board of Supervisors, the Falls Church City Council, and the Fairfax City Council.

These bylaws were approved by the Board of Supervisors on December 1, 2020.

GIVEN under my hand this first day of December, 2020.

Jill G. Cooper Clerk for the Board of Supervisors Department of Clerk Services